

EXPLANATION: NEW TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT REGULATIONS (34 C.F.R. § 106.45) GO INTO EFFECT AUGUST 14, 2020 AND REQUIRE NOTICE TO INDIVIDUALS REGARDING TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT/DISCRIMINATION.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: COST OF PROVIDING NOTICE AND TRAINING TO ALL PERSONNEL

PERSONNEL

03.1621 AP.2

- CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

### Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures

Refer to Procedure 09.428111 area for Title IX Sexual Harassment Notices, Grievance Procedures, and Reporting Forms.

RELATED PROCEDURES:

03.2621 AP.2; 09.428111 (all procedures)

EXPLANATION: NEW TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT REGULATIONS (34 C.F.R. § 106.45) GO INTO EFFECT AUGUST 14, 2020 AND REQUIRE NOTICE TO INDIVIDUALS REGARDING TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT/DISCRIMINATION.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: COST OF PROVIDING NOTICE AND TRAINING TO ALL PERSONNEL

PERSONNEL

03.2621 AP.2

- CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL -

### **Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures**

Refer to Procedure 09.428111 area for Title IX Sexual Harassment Notices, Grievance Procedures, and Reporting Forms.

**RELATED PROCEDURES:**

03.1621 AP.2; 09.428111 (all procedures)

EXPLANATION: NEW TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT REGULATIONS (34 C.F.R. § 106.45) GO INTO EFFECT AUGUST 14, 2020 AND REQUIRE NOTICE TO INDIVIDUALS REGARDING TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT/DISCRIMINATION.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: COST OF PROVIDING NOTICE AND TRAINING TO ALL PERSONNEL

STUDENTS

09.428111 AP.1

**Notice to Individuals Regarding Title IX Sexual Harassment/Discrimination**

This notice shall be provided to applicants for admission and employment, students, parents or legal guardians of students, employees, and all unions or professional organizations holding collective bargaining or professional agreements.

The ~~District~~KSB/KSD's [MC-DoSS1] Title IX Coordinator (TIXC) is

\_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_ Address \_\_\_\_\_ City, State, Zip

\_\_\_\_\_ Email Address \_\_\_\_\_ Telephone Number

Any person may report sex discrimination, including sexual harassment (whether or not the person reporting is the person alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sex discrimination or sexual harassment), in person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, using the contact information listed for the TIXC, or by any other means that results in the TIXC receiving the person's verbal or written report. Such a report may be made at any time (including during non-business hours) by using the telephone number or electronic mail address, or by mail to the office address, listed for the TIXC.

The ~~KSB/KSD District~~ must prominently display the contact information required to be listed for the TIXC and Policies 03.1621, 03.2621, 09.428111 Title IX Sexual Harassment and 09.428111 AP.11 Title IX Grievance Procedures on its website, if any, and in each handbook or catalog that it makes available to persons entitled to a notification listed above.

The ~~KSB/KSD District~~ must ensure that the TIXC(s), Investigators, Decision Makers, and any person who facilitates an informal resolution process, receive training on the regulatory definition of sexual harassment; the scope of the ~~KSB/KSD District~~'s educational program or activities; how to conduct an investigation; the grievance process (including informal resolutions and appeals); and impartial service, conflict of interest, and bias standards.

The ~~KSB/KSD District~~ must make these training materials publicly available on its website, or if the ~~KSB/KSD District~~ does not maintain a website the ~~KSB/KSD District~~ must make these materials available upon request for inspection by members of the public.

**REFERENCES:**

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC § 1681, et seq.); 34 C.F.R. Part 106

**RELATED POLICIES:**

03.1621; 03.2621; 09.428111

**RELATED PROCEDURES:**

03.1621; 03.2621; (all procedures)  
09.428111 (all procedures)

EXPLANATION: NEW POLICY MANDATED BY AMENDMENTS TO TITLE IX REGULATION DEFINES “TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT” TO INCLUDE SERIOUS MISCONDUCT”; INCLUDES OTHER KEY DEFINITIONS; REQUIRES DISCUSSION/IMPLEMENTATION OF SUPPORTIVE MEASURES WHETHER OR NOT A “FORMAL COMPLAINT” IS FILED; REQUIRES GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES; CONFIRMS GENERAL PARENT RIGHTS TO ACT ON BEHALF OF STUDENTS; ADDRESSES CONFLICT OF INTEREST STANDARDS FOR MULTIPLE REQUIRED DISTRICT ACTORS AT INVESTIGATIVE, DECISION-MAKING, AND APPELLATE STAGES; AND ALSO COVERS: CONFIDENTIALITY, EVIDENCE RULES, REQUIRED EMPLOYEE REPORTING, AND RETALIATION.  
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: COST OF PROVIDING NOTICE AND TRAINING TO ALL PERSONNEL

STUDENTS

09.428111AP.11

## Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures

THIS PROCEDURE APPLIES TO “TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT”  
UNDER POLICIES 03.1621, 03.2621, AND 09.428111.

### REPORTING

1. School employees who have reason to believe that a student has been subjected to Title IX Sexual Harassment are required to promptly make a report to the Title IX Coordinator (TIXC).
2. Students, parents/legal guardians or other individuals who believe a student has been sexually harassed may make a report to the TIXC.
3. If the individual making the report is the alleged victim (“Complainant” as defined in the Title IX Sexual Harassment regulation), or if the Complainant is identified by the individual making the report, the TIXC will meet with the Complainant to discuss supportive measures that may be appropriate in the particular circumstances and explain the process for filing a formal complaint.
4. The KSB/KSDDistrict[MC-DoSS2] cannot provide an informal resolution process for resolving a report unless a formal complaint is filed.
5. The SuperintendentCommissioner/designee shall be informed of all reports and formal complaints of sexual harassment.

### FORMAL COMPLAINT

1. A Complainant and/or their parent/legal guardian may file a formal written complaint requesting investigation of alleged Title IX Sexual Harassment. The written complaint must include basic information concerning the allegation of sexual harassment (i.e., date, time, location, individual(s) who allegedly engaged in sexual harassment, description of allegation).  
Students who need assistance in preparing a formal written complaint, may consult with the TIXC.
2. In accordance with the Title IX regulations, the TIXC must dismiss a formal complaint under this Title IX procedure if:
  - a) the conduct alleged in the formal complaint does not constitute sexual harassment as defined under the Title IX regulations and the Title IX Sexual Harassment policy; or
  - b) the conduct alleged did not occur within the scope of the KSB/KSDDistrict’s education programs and activities, or
  - c) did not occur in the United States.

## Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures

### FORMAL COMPLAINT (CONTINUED)

3. In accordance with the Title IX regulations, the TIXC may dismiss a formal complaint if:
  - a) a Complainant withdraws the formal complaint, or withdraws particular allegations within the complaint;
  - b) the Respondent is no longer employed by or enrolled in the KSB/KSDDistrict; or
  - c) there are specific circumstances that prevent the KSB/KSDDistrict from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination regarding the formal complaint. However, if the conduct potentially violates other policies or laws, it may be addressed through other applicable Board policy/procedure.
4. If a formal complaint is dismissed under this Title IX procedure, the TIXC will promptly and simultaneously send written notices to the parties explaining the reasons. The parties have the opportunity to appeal dismissals as outlined below.
5. In certain circumstances, the TIXC may file a formal complaint even when the alleged victim chooses not to. Examples could include instances where the Respondent (person alleged to have engaged in sexual harassment) has been found responsible for previous sexual harassment; a safety threat within the KSB/KSDDistrict, or other alleged serious violations where pursuit of a complaint is warranted.
6. If the conduct alleged in a formal complaint potentially violates other laws or Board policies, the KSB/KSDDistrict may address the conduct under another applicable Board policy/procedure.

### EMERGENCY REMOVAL/SUSPENSION

The SuperintendentCommissioner or designee may direct the removal of a student from education programs and activities on an emergency basis during the complaint procedure:

1. If there is a determination, following an individualized safety and risk analysis which may be performed as provided in KSB/KSDDistrict Policy 09.429 (Threat Assessment), that there is an immediate threat to the physical health or safety of an individual arising from the allegations of sexual harassment. Examples of such circumstances might include, but are not limited to, a continued threat of violence against a Complainant by a Respondent, or a Respondent's threat of self-harm due to the allegations.<sup>1</sup>
2. The Respondent and parent/legal guardian will be provided notice of the emergency removal, and will be provided an opportunity to challenge the decision either before or following the removal (this is an opportunity to be heard, not a hearing) utilizing the procedure applicable to student suspensions per Policy 09.434 Suspension.
3. Any such decision shall be made in compliance with any applicable disability laws, including the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act.

## Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures

### EMPLOYEE SUSPENSION WITH PAY

An employee may be suspended with pay during the complaint procedure as provided in Board policies.<sup>2</sup>

### NOTICE TO PARTIES FOLLOWING A FORMAL COMPLAINT

1. The TIXC will provide to the parties written notice of the formal complaint and allegations of sexual harassment potentially constituting Title IX Sexual Harassment. The notice shall include:
  - Notice regarding the complaint procedure and the availability of an informal resolution process;
  - Sufficient details known at the time (including identities of parties, if known; the conduct alleged; and the date and location of the alleged incident[s], if known), allowing sufficient time to prepare before any initial interview (not less than ten [10] calendar days);
  - A statement that the Respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct and that a determination of responsibility will be made at the conclusion of the grievance process;
  - The parties may inspect and review evidence directly related to the allegations of Title IX Sexual Harassment;
  - Notice that the parties may each have an advisor of their choice (who may be an attorney);
  - Notice that knowingly making false statements or submitting false information in bad faith during the complaint process is prohibited and may result in disciplinary action;
  - Notice of the name of the investigator, with sufficient time (no less than three [3] calendar days) to raise concerns of conflict of interest or bias.
2. If additional allegations become known at a later time, notice of the additional allegations will be provided to the parties.
3. The TIXC will discuss supportive measures with each party and oversee implementation of such measures as appropriate.

### INFORMAL RESOLUTION PROCESS

After a formal complaint has been filed, and if the TIXC believes the circumstances are appropriate, the TIXC may offer the parties the opportunity to participate in an informal resolution process to resolve the complaint without completing the investigation and determination process. Informal resolutions cannot be used to resolve a formal complaint where a student is the Complainant and the Respondent is an employee.

## Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures

### INFORMAL RESOLUTION PROCESS (CONTINUED)

Informal resolutions can take many forms, depending on the particular case. Examples include, but are not limited to, facilitated discussions between the parties; restorative justice; acknowledgment of responsibility by a Respondent; apologies; disciplinary actions against a Respondent or a requirement to engage in specific services; or supportive measures. Both parties must voluntarily agree in writing to participate in an informal resolution process, and either party can withdraw from the process at any time. The Superintendent/Commissioner/designee must agree to the terms of any informal resolution reached between the parties. If an informal resolution agreement is reached, it must be signed by both parties and the KSB/KSDDistrict. Any such signed agreement is final and binding according to its terms.

If an informal resolution process does not resolve the formal complaint, nothing from the informal resolution process may be considered as evidence in the subsequent investigation or determination. The parties will be advised that engagement in the informal resolution process is grounds for extension of the investigation timeline.

### INVESTIGATION

1. The complaint will be investigated by a trained internal or external individual designated by the Superintendent/Commissioner, who should consult with KSB/KSDDistrict legal counsel concerning the handling and investigation of the complaint.
2. The Investigator may consult with the TIXC as agreed during the investigation process.
3. If the complaint is against an employee of the KSB/KSDDistrict, rights conferred under an applicable collective bargaining agreement shall be applied, to the extent they do not conflict with the Title IX regulatory requirements.
4. The Investigator will:
  - a. Meet with each party after they have received appropriate notice of any meeting and its purpose, with sufficient time to prepare.
  - b. Allow parties to have their advisor at all meetings related to the complaint, although advisors may not speak on behalf of a party or interfere with the process.
  - c. Allow parties a reasonable opportunity to identify witnesses and submit favorable and unfavorable evidence.
  - d. Interview witnesses and conduct such other activities that will assist in ascertaining facts (site visits, review of documents, etc.).
  - e. Consider evidence that is relevant and directly related to the allegations in the formal complaint.
  - f. During the course of the investigation, provide both parties with an equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence that is obtained in the investigation that is directly related to the allegations in the formal complaint (including evidence which the KSB/KSDDistrict does not intend to rely upon in reaching a determination of responsibility), and favorable and unfavorable evidence.

## Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures

### INVESTIGATION (CONTINUED)

- g. Prior to completion of the investigation report, provide each party and advisor (if any) the evidence subject to inspection and review, and provide the parties with ten (10) calendar days to submit a written response. Access to such evidence may be provided via file sharing software that does not permit copying or downloading. The Investigator shall advise the parties that evidence is not to be publicly disseminated.
  - h. Consider the parties' written responses to the evidence prior to completing the investigation report.
  - i. Create an investigative report that that fairly summarizes relevant evidence including the Investigator's recommendation on whether or not the evidence supports a finding that the Respondent engaged in conduct constituting Title IX Sexual Harassment. The Investigator shall send the report to the parties and advisors (if any) for their review and written responses which must be filed with the Investigator within ten (10) calendar days of their receipt of the report.
  - j. After receipt of the parties' written responses (if any), forward the investigation report and party responses to the assigned Decision Maker. The Decision Maker shall immediately inform the parties of the date of his or her receipt of the report and of the deadline for submission of questions as provided below.
  - k. The Investigator's report shall be non-binding on the Decision Maker.
5. The investigation shall be concluded within forty (40) calendar days from the date of the TIXC Notice to the Parties Following a Formal Complaint as referenced above, but reasonable extension of time for good cause shall be allowed.

### DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIBILITY

The SuperintendentCommissioner shall assign a trained Decision Maker to arrive at a determination of responsibility. The Decision Maker cannot be the Investigator, Informal Resolution Facilitator, or the TIXC.

1. The Decision Maker shall have authority to preside over the pre-decision process in a manner the allows the Complainant and Respondent an equal opportunity to participate, including setting reasonable equally applicable limits on the number of questions and excluding questions on relevancy grounds or that seek privileged or confidential medical treatment information. The Decision Maker shall provide the parties with the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions that the party wants asked of another party or witness within five (5) calendar days of when the Decision Maker received the investigation report and party responses.

The Decision Maker shall provide a written explanation to a party proposing questions if the Decision Maker excludes a question on grounds that it is not relevant.



## Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures

### DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

2. Each party shall be provided the opportunity to review the responses of another party and/or witness, and to ask limited written follow-up questions within five (5) calendar days of receiving the answers.
3. Each party will receive a copy of the responses to any follow-up questions.
4. The Decision Maker shall review the investigation report, the parties' responses and other relevant materials, applying the preponderance of the evidence standard ("more likely than not").
5. The Decision Maker shall issue a written determination, which shall include the following:
  - a) Identification of all the allegations potentially constituting Title IX Sexual Harassment;
  - b) A description of the procedural steps taken from receipt of the formal complaint through the determination;
  - c) A determination regarding responsibility as to each allegation and findings of fact supporting the determinations;
  - d) A statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including a determination regarding responsibility, any disciplinary sanctions to be imposed on the Respondent, and whether remedies designed to restore or preserve equal access to the KSB/KSDDistrict's programs and activities will be provided to the Complainant. In order to preserve confidentiality, remedies provided to the Complainant are not to be described in the determination report;
  - e) If applicable, a statement that disciplinary sanctions may require additional hearings or proceedings under separate law and policy: e.g. student expulsion; classified or certified employee public reprimand, suspension without pay, termination; or student alternative education program placement proceedings;
  - f) The KSB/KSDDistrict's appeal procedure and permissible bases for the parties to appeal the determination.
6. The written determination shall be provided to the parties simultaneously. The determination concerning responsibility becomes final either on the date that the KSB/KSDDistrict provides the parties with the written determination of the results of the appeal, if an appeal is filed, or if an appeal is not filed, the date on which the appeal would no longer be considered timely.
7. The implementation of measures or sanctions shall be made subject to and in compliance with applicable disability laws included the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act.
8. The determination shall be issued with thirty (30) calendar days of the Decision Maker's receipt of the Investigator's report and recommendation, but reasonable extension of time for good cause shall be allowed.

## Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures

### REMEDIES, DISCIPLINE AND OTHER ACTIONS

#### Range of Remedies to Allow Equal Access to Complainant

1. Remedies are measures used to ensure that the Complainant has equal access to the KSB/KSDDistrict's education programs and activities following the Decision Maker's determination. Such remedies may include supportive measures, and may include other appropriate measures, depending upon the determination and the needs of the Complainant. The TIXC is responsible for implementing remedies and providing needed assistance to the Complainant.

#### 2. Range of Disciplinary Sanctions (Students)

The following is a non-exhaustive range of disciplinary sanctions that may be imposed when there is a determination that students are responsible for one or more violations involving sexual harassment: In or out of school suspension; expulsion; assignment to alternative education programs; requirement to engage in education or counseling program; disqualification or modification of privileges to participate in sports or extracurricular programs; unilateral no-contact orders, school assignment alteration, or schedule changes; prohibitions or limitations on presence on school property or at school-related events; and other disciplinary sanctions and interventions set forth in the Code of Acceptable Behavior and Discipline.

#### 3. Range of Disciplinary Sanctions (Employees)

The following is a non-exhaustive range of disciplinary sanctions that may be imposed when there is a determination that employees are responsible for one or more violations involving sexual harassment: Requirement to engage in education or counseling program; unilateral no-contact orders, school assignment alteration; prohibitions or limitations on presence on school property or at school-related events; private reprimand; public reprimand; suspension without pay; termination.

### APPEALS

The Superintendent/Commissioner/designee may serve as the Appellate Decision Maker and shall assign or arrange for the services of a trained Appellate Decision Maker if s/he does not serve in that role. The Appellate Decision Maker cannot be the Initial Decision Maker, Informal Resolution Facilitator, Investigator, or TIXC.

The Appellate Decision Maker shall have authority to preside over the appeal process in a manner that allows Complainant and Respondent an equal opportunity to participate, including setting reasonable page limits, enforcing timelines, and limiting review on the record to allowable grounds.

The parties (Complainant and Respondent) have the opportunity to appeal a responsibility determination and dismissals of formal complaints. Appeals will be considered only on the following grounds:

1. A procedural irregularity that affected the outcome;
2. New evidence that was not reasonably available as of the date of the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal of the formal complaint, that could affect the outcome;

## Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures

### APPEALS (CONTINUED)

3. The TIXC, Investigator, or Decision Maker had a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or Respondents generally, or the individual Complainant or Respondent that affected the outcome; or

### APPEAL STEPS

1. An appeal must be filed in writing within five (5) calendar days of the receipt of the determination decision. Appeals after that deadline will not be considered. The written appeal must state the grounds and arguments for reversal or modification of the determination.
2. Appeals must be filed with the ~~Superintendent~~Commissioner/desinee, who will submit the appeal to the Appellate Decision Maker or engage in further appellate steps if the ~~Commissioner/designee~~Superintendent is the Appellate Decision Maker. Parties initiating an appeal or seeking reversal or modification of a responsibility determination must explain the impact of any asserted error on the outcome and, in the case of new evidence, are to explain why such evidence was not available, summarize the evidence and explain how the party contends such evidence would have affected the outcome.
3. The Appellate Decision Maker shall notify the other party in writing of the appeal and include copies of the of the document setting forth the grounds and arguments in support the appeal. The other party shall have the option to file with the Appellate Decision Maker written arguments in response to the opposing party's appeal within five (5) calendar days of receipt of the appeal document. An untimely response will not be considered.
4. The Appellate Decision Maker shall conduct an impartial review of the appeal including consideration of arguments of the parties and the written record and may consult with ~~KSB/KSD District~~ legal counsel in the decision-making process.
5. The Appellate Decision Maker shall issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and rationale for the result and provide notice of the written decision simultaneously to the parties. The Decision may: affirm the determination, reverse the determination, or modify the determination in whole or in part.
6. The Title IX grievance determination of responsibility is final when there is no timely appeal or on the date when the Appellate Decision Maker sends his or her decision to the parties. A determination that conduct is not Title IX Sexual Harassment does not prevent the imposition of sanctions consistent with other law or policy where the conduct is determined to be in violation of such other law or policy.

### RECORDS

Records in connection with sexual harassment reports and the complaint process shall be maintained for a minimum of seven (7) years.

---

**Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedures**

**REFERENCES:**

<sup>1</sup>KRS 158.4410; KRS 158.150; KRS 158.153  
704 KAR 19:002  
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act  
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act  
The Americans with Disabilities Act.

**RELATED POLICIES:**

<sup>2</sup>03.173; 03.27  
09.429; 09.434

**RELATED PROCEDURES:**

03.1621 AP.2; 03.2621 AP.2; 09.428111 (all procedures)

EXPLANATION: NEW TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT REGULATIONS (34 C.F.R. § 106.45) GO INTO EFFECT AUGUST 14, 2020 AND REQUIRE NOTICE TO INDIVIDUALS REGARDING TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT/DISCRIMINATION.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: COST OF PROVIDING NOTICE AND TRAINING TO ALL PERSONNEL

STUDENTS

09.428111 AP.21

**Title IX Sexual Harassment Reporting Form**

<b>COMPLAINANT</b>			
	<i>Last Name</i>	<i>First Name</i>	<i>Middle Initial</i>
<b>STUDENT'S SCHOOL</b>	<b>GRADE</b>	<b>HOMEROOM/CLASSROOM</b>	
<b>EMPLOYEE'S WORK SITE</b>			

**INFORMATION CONCERNING SEXUAL HARASSMENT**

**DATE:** \_\_\_\_\_ **TIME:**  AM  PM **LOCATION:** \_\_\_\_\_

**INDIVIDUAL(S) WHO ALLEGEDLY ENGAGED IN TITLE IX SEXUAL HARASSMENT:**

\_\_\_\_\_

**DESCRIPTION OF ALLEGATION:**

\_\_\_\_\_

**NAME OF PERSON FILLING OUT THIS FORM (PLEASE PRINT):** \_\_\_\_\_

**SIGNATURE:** \_\_\_\_\_ **DATE:** \_\_\_\_\_